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The above and foregoing cause having come to be heard
before DANIEL MANRY, Administrative Law Judge, on August 30,
1999, at the hour of 9:30 a.m., at the Brevaard County
Government Center, Building B, 2725 Fran Jamieson Way, in
the City of Viera, County of Brevard, State of Florida, for

the purpose of taking testimony in said cause.
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APPEARANCES

FOR THE PETITIONER:
CLARENCE ROWE
(Pro se)

FOR THE RESPONDENT OLEANDER:

DAVID S. DEE, ESQUIRE

Landers & Parsons, P.A.
310 West College Avenue
Tallahassee, Florida 32301

FOR THE RESPONDENT DEP:

SCOTT A. GOORLAND, ESQUIRE
Assistant General Counsel
3900 Commonwealth Boulevard, MS-35

Tallahassee, Florida
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PUBLIC COMMENT:

INDEKXK

MARJORIE DERRICK 29

JAN MOODY 30

CRAIG BOCK 34

DOUGLAS SPAHR 54

TOM BERRINGER 59

OLEANDER'S WITNESSES: DIRECT CROSS REDIRECT RECROSS
RICHARD ZWOLAK 89 136 153
KENNARD F. KOSKY 155 177

RICHARD McCANN 184 218

AL LINERO 226 238

DEP'S WITNESSES:

NONE

PETITIONER'S WITNESSES:

JUANITA BARTON 269 272

ASSOCIATED COURT REPORTERS (561) 655-2300




10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

EXHIBITS

OLEANDER'S EXHIBITS:

7, 8, 12, 16, 17, 31, 34, 35, 36, 45, 46
14, 28, 29, 30, 1, 6, 9, 10, 13
15, 20-27, 37-¢é4

2! 31 5; 11, 19, 32

DEP'S EXHIIBTS:

NONE

PETITICNER'S EXHIBITS:

1

3
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EVIDENCE

132

176

217

237
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252

261
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PROCEEDTINGS

JUDGE: This is the administrative
hearing in Clarence Rowe versus Oleander

Power Project, L.P., and Department of

‘Environmental Protection, Division of™

Administrative Hearings Case Number-
99-2581.

The issues for determination in this
proceeding are stated in the Petition for
Administrative Hearing. My name is Daniel

Manry, I'm the Administrative Law Judge

assigned by the Division of Administrative

Hearings to conduct this proceeding.

Counsel, state your appearance for the
record beginning with Oleander.

MR. DEE: Yes, sir. My name is David
Dee, I'm-an attorney with the Law Firm of
Landers and Parsons, Tallahassee, Florida.
I'm here on behalf of Oleander Power Project,
the Applicant.

JUDGE: And the Department?

MR. GOORLAND: Scott Goorland for the
Department of Environmental Protection.

JUDGE: Mr. Rowe, are you represented by

Counsel?

ASSOCIATED COURT REPORTERS (561) ©655-2300
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MR. ROWE: No, sir.

JUDGE: Are you familiar with the procedure
followed in an administrative hearing?

MR. ROWE: No, sir, this is my first
opportunity, get my feet wet.

JUDGE: I'm going to take a few minutes
to give you a brief summary of what's going
to take place here today. If you have any
guestions during that explanation, feel free
to ask.

Or at the conclusion or during the course
of the hearing, to the extent that I can answer
those questions without giving you legal advice,
I will.

I'm the Administrative Law Judge in the
case and I -- that means I make legal rules
and findings of fact in the case. I work for-

the State, but I have nothing to do with the

- Department of Environmental protection. I'm

an independent tribunal.

You are the Petitioner in this case.
And that means that you have the burden of
proocf. You will present your case in chief
first consisting of witnesses and exhibits.

How many witnesses do you have?

ASSOCIATED COURT REPORTERS {561) 655-2300
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MR. ROWE: I have one witness, but I
do have some questions and concern. I had
submitted to you a written request pertaining
to the citizens, I call them the people who
have a vested right that live here, pay taxes
and have an awful lot to say --

JUDGE: We'll get to that in a few
minutes, Mr. Rowe.

MR. ROWE: Okay.

JUDGE: How many exhibits do you have?

MR. ROWE: I have not tallied them.

However, I did give them all to Oleander

Power Plant and they did number them. I
don't know what the numbers are that they
have placed on them. But I gave them all
of the exhibits.

JUDGE: How many witnesses do you have,
Mr. Dee?

MR. DEE: Four.

JUDGE: How many exhibits?

MR. DEE: Forty-six.

JUDGE: Okay. You're going to call
your witness first, Mr. Rowe. You will
conduct direct examination of that witness.

Mr. Dee will have c¢ross examination, you

ASSOCTATED COURT REPORTERS {561) 655-2300
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will have Redirect and that will conclude
the examination of the witness.

You submit your exhibits during your
case in chief, and Mr. Dee has the right
to 6bject to the admissibility of any of
those exhibits. I will rule on the
objections, if any. And then we'll proceed
in accordance with the ruling.

If I sustain the objection, the exhibit
will be retained in the record but not

submitted as evidence. If I overrule the

objection, that means the exhibit will be

admitted in evidence and relied upon as a
basis for findings of fact.

MR. DEE: Your Honor =--

JUDGE : Yes.

MR. DEE: -- 1if I could object -- or
interrupt at this moment, with regard;toﬂz
the permitting case as conducted by the
Department of Environmental Protection --

JUDGE: You have the burden of proof.

MR. DEE: -- I have the burden of
going forward initially.

JUDGE : You're correct, you're correct,

okay. So that changes the order of proof.

ASSOCIATED COURT REPORTERS (561) 655-2300
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Let me ask the Department, are the interests
of Oleander and the Department sufficiently
aligned that Oleander can function as lead
counsel?

'~ MR. GOORLAND: I'll be representing“
the Department and if an issue comes up, you
know, that I'd l;ke to ask a question to a
witness, I'm going to represent the Department
in that matter, if Oleander doesn't represent
the Department in that matter.

JUDGE: As a matter of procedure, I'm

going to address Oleander first.

MR. GOORLAND: That's fine, I'll speak
up if I need to.

JUDGE: 1I'll give you an opportunity
to on witnesses further direct if it's an
Oleander witness. If it's a witness by Mr. .
Rowe, it would be further cross by the
Department.

MR. GOORLAND: Thank you.

JUDGE: Any objection to that?

MR. GOORLAND: No.

JUDGE: Okay. Just to finish the
explanation, Mr. Dee also has a right to

object to questions you ask of witnesses.

ASSOCIATED COURT REPORTERS (561) 655-2300
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If he has an objection and I sustain the
objection, then that means you need to
ask the witness the next question. If I

overrule the objection, that means that

‘the witness can answer the question.

At the conclusion -- well, actually,
I'm changing the order here. Mr. Dee is
going to make a prima facie showing first.
At the conclusion cof his case, then the
burden of going forward shifts to Mr.
Rowe.

Mr. Rowe, you then will present your
case in chief. And Mr. Dee then will have
an opportunity for rebuttal evidence.

MR. DEE: Yes, sir.

JUDGE: The same rules apply to Mr.,
when Mr. Oleander is presenting his -- I
mean when Mr. Dee is presenting Oleander's
caée, you have the right to object to
guestions of witnesses, you have the right
to object to the admissibility of exhibits.

And examination of witnesses by Mr.
Dee will be directed by Mr. Dee, cross by
you, Mr. Rowe, and redirect by Mr. Dee.

There may be further direct on those questions,

ASSOCIATED CQURT REPORTERS (561) 655-2300
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I mean on those witnesses by the Department.
Any questions?

MR. ROWER: Yes. I don't know if it's
a question, but -- oh, yes, it's a question.

I've béen approached by a lot of the
citizens that ‘have what I have referred to
as a vested right or Constitutional right in
reference to the freedom of speech. They
have asked to see if they would be given an
opportunity to bring their concerns to your
attention for consideration.

I did put that in writing to you. I
did not get a response to that concern.

Also, during a meeting on May the 13th,
both DEP attorneys did make it known that
the members of the community will be, wduld
be given an opportunity to speak before you
and that you would take their comments in
consideration.

In making this request, I would like
to ——

JUDGE: Who said that?

MR. ROWE: The DEP attorney, as well
as Mr. -- what is his name, Mr. Halin, I

think his name is. I wasn't at -- I do

ASSOCIATED COURT REPORTERS (561) 655-2300
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have the transcript.

JUDGE: Mr. Rowe, we have several
pending motions that I'm going to take up
in a few minutes. One of the pending
motions is your request to allow pdblic
testimony filed August 6th. The second-"
is Oleander's Motion in Limine filed August
16th. And the third is Oleander's Motion
to Strike filed July 30, '99. All of those
we'll fake up on pending motions.

Any witness scheduling problems or

other preliminary matters?

MR. DEE: No.

MR. ROWE: My witnesses have another
previous engagement. They will be here but
they will be much later. But since he's
going to be deing his thing first, they
will probably be here in time.

JUDGE: Okay. Mr. Rowe; have you had
an opportunity to review Mr. Dee's exhibits?

MR. ROWE: Not really.

JUDGE: Okay.

MR. ROWE: 1I've looked at some of them --

JUDGE: Well, you're not in a position

to state whether or not any of those exhibits

ASSOCIATED COURT REPCRTERS {561) 655-2300
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are uncontested?

MR. ROWE: No, sir. As a matter of
fact, I'd like to explain, as a matter of
record, I just received these documentation
as of Friday and due to the fact there was
a hurricane coming, we were making all
those preparations and doing what was
necessary, I have not had an opportunity
to review thesé things.

However, I don't have any problem in

holding this case up. As a matter of fact,

I think it might be important if we expedite

this case in order to, if the ruling is not
favorable for the citizens that we might
move this case into another arena.

JUDGE: Mr. Dee, have you had an
opportunity to review Mr. Rowe's exhibits?

MR. DEE: Yes, sir.

JUDGE: Are any of those exhibits
uncontested?

MR. DEE: No, sir.

JUDGE: Okay. On preliminary -- oh,
will there be a transcript?

MR. DEE: Yes, sir.

JUDGE: Okay.

ASSOCIATED COURT REPORTERS {561) 655-2300
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MR. ROWE: Your Honor, I do have a
question to both you and Oleander Power
Plant. Is it okay if I ask someone to sit
here for me just to pass on some information

that I might need, someone to do some running
or something of that nature?

JUDGE: To assist you?

MR. ROWE: Yes,.

JUDGE: Yes. Yes, except for the fact

that I'm not sure we have a chair for that

person. Someone has advised me that more

chairs are coming, but at this point they're

not here, yet.

MR. GOORLAND: Your Honor, as a
preliminary matter, I'd just like to file a
Notice of Appearance,

JUDGE: Oh, yes.

MR. GOORLAND: I'm substituting for
Douglas Beason.

JUDGE: Okay. Just for the record, Mr.
Goorland has just entered a Notice of
Appearance by Scott A. Goorland, Assistant
General Counsel for State of Florida
Department of Envircnmental Protection.

Okay, before we get opening statements,

ASSOCIATED COURT REPORTERS (561} 655-2300
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Mr. Rowe --

MR. ROWE: Yes, sir.

JUDGE: -- the first pending motiocon is
your request to allow public testimony. Do
you wish to argue your Motion?

MR. ROWE: - Yes. I make that request
on behalf of the citizens that have what I
would, what I want to call a vested right or
Constitutional right under freedom of speech
to voice their concern. These are people

that live in the community, they're registered

voters, they're taxpayers and they do have a

serious interest in the Oleander Power Planf
as well as other polluters in the community.
Therefore, they would like to voice their
concern.

Oleander did through I guess it's
process, and I'm getting my feet wet in
reference to it, has attempted to make
people aware that it would réquest
discovery through interrogatories,
videotapes and disks and things of a
computer nature and some people were
concerned about holding up their businesses

and things of that nature and, therefore,

ASSOCIATED COURT REPORTERS (561) 655-2300
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it was kind of intimidating for people to
have to deal with that situation.

And based on the fact that on May the
13th, Mr. Doug Beasley, the attorney --

MR. GOORLAND: Beason.

MR. ROWE: -- Beason, the attorney for
DEP, and Mr., I think his name is Halpin,
the supervisor, I need to find that page,

has stated that the public would be given

‘an opportunity to speak before ycou and

that you would take those things in

~consideration to the Secretary based on

their concerns.

I would like to make that request and
in making that request, I would ask that
the public comments of the citizens,
public comments be postponed until at
least tomorrow to get that.word out because
these people have to work for a living,
they --

JUDGE: That Motion to Continue is
denied. Keep going.

MR. ROWE: Okay. Well, the main point,
I wanted to make sure that the people that

are not here today that were working would

ASSOCIATED COURT REPORTERS {561) 655-2300
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be able to get their word in and be here
tomorrow. But I have to abide by whatever
your decision is.

JUDGE: Yes. This hearing isn't going
to be going on tomorrow. _Héw many people
are you asking for public testimony from
today?

MR. ROWE: I am not -- I.don't have
a head count or anything of that nature,
it's just that people have been calling me
in reference to that.

JUDGE: How many are here? I see at
least four, four hands:. Okay.

MR. ROWE: There will probably be more
later.

JUDGE: Anything further, Mr. Rowe,
in support of your Motion?

MR. ROWE: No, like I said, I'm not a
lawyer and I don't practice it, but I like
to think that we, the people, that we here
do have a right to voice a concern about,
to approve those things that come into
our community because we're going to have
to live with it.

The people that are investing into

ASSOCIATED COURT REPORTERS (561) 655-2300
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this community don't live here, probably

won't be living here and, therefore, my

main concern is in reference to the health

and the safety and the welfare of this
community and my children and my grandchildren
in reference to environmental impact.

JUDGE: Any response, Mr. Dee?

MR. DEE: Yes, Your Honor. On behalf
of Oleander, we had previously prepared and
filed a Motion in Limine and a response to
the request for publié testimony.

As you wiil see ‘in that response, there
are at least four major concerns that we have;
It is correct that under Chapter 120 you have
the right to allow public testimony when it
is appropriate. And it is clear from the
Sﬁatute that that is purely discretionary
on your part.

In this instance, we would respectfully
suggest that it is not appropriate to have
further public testimony. The Florida
Department of Environmental Protection has
already had two public hearings that were
noticed in the newspaper, that were held

at night at a site convenient to the public

ASSOCIATED COURT REPORTERS (561) 655-2300
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close to where the project's going to be
located for the purposes of soliciting
public.

The first hearing was held in March,
it lasted for several hours. There was a
sizable crowd. I did not get a head count,
but the estimate would be probably 70 to
80 people or more.

The seconq hearing was held in May,
again, after notices and an opportunity for

the public to come in. The estimate that

~I've heard is there were approximately 20

people at that meeting.

Both of those opportunities were
available to the public. A number of people
came and spoke. Mr. Rowe did not attend
the first meeting. He appeared briefly at
the second meeting and then left because he
felt that the notice had been inadequate.

Our concern is that the public has had
a fair and appropriate opportunity to comment
already and it is unnecessary to have, yet,
anocther opportunity in this proceeding.

Our concerns become more acute when we

start talking about people other than what

ASSOCIATED COURT REPORTERS {561) 655-2300
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I would describe as the general public. The
first concern is that there were a group of
Petitioners that initially filed petitions
concerning the permit that's at issue in
this case. Those Petitioners voluntarily
dismissed their case before discovery could
be conducted.

Now, Mr. Rowe has indicated that they
were, quote, intimidated. I would suggest
to you that they merely received standard

interrogatories asking them to explain the

. basis for their contentions and also to

produce the documents that supported their
contentions.

They dismissed. They should not now
be allowed to come to this hearing and, in
effect, ambush Oleander with issues and
testimony that was not previously disclosed
through discovery.

We've had no opportunity to take the
depositions of those individuals or otherwise
to learn the basis for their claims. |

The third set of potential public
witnesses that is of concern to us would be

those people that would come in and proffer

ASSOCIATED COURT REPORTERS (561) 655-2300
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expert testimony under the guise of public

comment. We understand that general lay

members of the public sometimes are allowed

to come in and testify at these proceedings.

But we do not want experts coming in and

testifying, again, when we've had no

opportunity for discovery.

We've sent interrogatories to Mr.

he's indicated that he has no expert witnesses.

Rowe,

We've taken his deposition, he reconfirmed

that he had no expert witnesses.

Given the fact that there has been no

expert testimony examined through discévery,

we would hate to have Oleander ambushed in

this hearing by members of the public or

people coming in under the pretense that

they're members of the public and presenting

expert opinion testimony.

The final concern is that Mr. Rowe has,

to use his words from his deposition, tried

to create a campaign in this instance.

He

has gone out and solicited members of the

public to come testify. He has not

identified any of them to us with the

exception, I guess, of Ms. Juanita Burton,

ASSOCIATED COURT REPORTERS
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or Barton.

Other members of the public, again,
we've had no opportunity for discovery.
We don't know who they were or they are or
what they wouldisay. -

Given the significance of this case
to my client, we just don't feel that it's
appropriate for them to be ambushed in this
fashion with public testimony. This is a
major project, it offers significant benefits

to the residents of this community. 1It's

been carefully reviewed by the Department

of Environmental Protection and recommended
for approval.
We feel that the client in this case,
Oleander, is entitled to a fair hearing.
It would not be fair to allow the public
to come in and bushwhack Oleander at this
point with undisclosed facts and allegations.
JUDGE: Who are the individuals, members
of the public, who are here to comment today?
Okay, Madame, state your name for the
record and spell --
MS. DERRICK: Marjorie Derrick.

JUDGE: -~ Spell each name.

ASSOCIATED CQURT REPORTERS (561) 655-2300
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MS. DERRICK: M AR J ORI E,
DERRTICK.

JUDGE: And your name?

MS. MOODY: Jan Moody, M O O D Y.

JUDGE: J A N?. —

MS. MOODY: Uh-huh.

JUDGE: Sir?

MR. BOCK: Craig Bock, CR A I G, last

name B O C K.

MR. SPAHR: Douglas Spahr, S P A H R.

JUDGE: S P A --

MR. SPAHR: S P A H R.

MR. BCCK: &And I know at least two
others that are coming, sir, just running
a little late.

MR. SPAHR: There's one more, Your
Heonor.

JUDGE: Oh, yes.

MR. BERRINGER: Tom Berringer, just
like the movie actor.

JUDGE: Well, I'm not --

MR. BERRINGER: Spelled a little bit
different.

JUDGE: How do you spell your last

name?

ASSOCIATED COURT REPORTERS {(561) 655-2300
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MS. MOODY: No.

MR. SPAHR: Yes, yeah, we were Petitioner --

MR. BOCK: Oh, excuse me, in other words,
did we file?

JUDGE:_ Yeah, were you a party to a case?ﬁ -

. MR. BOCK: Yes, sir.

JUDGE: Okay. Ms. Derrick, are you going
to say anything different today than what you
said in previous public =--

MS. DERRICK: Yes, I've had --

JUDGE: -- hearings -- ckay, we have a
Court Reporter here today and we're trying
to make a public record. -

MS. DERRICK: Uh-huh.

JUDGE: So throughout the course of
the day, I'm going to instruct everyone to
talk one at a time. So 1if I'm asking you
a question, let me finish the gquestion
before you start your answer. And I'll
let you finish your response before I ask
the --

MS. DERRICK: I had the one-sentence
thing to say is all.

JUDGE: -- and I'll let you finish

your response before I ask the next question.

ASSOCIATED COURT REPORTERS (561) 655-2300
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Did you get that?

COURT REPORTER: Thank you, I did, yes.

JUDGE: ©Okay. So you are going to say

something different than what you said --

- . MS. DERRICK: Definitely, yes, sir.

_JUDGE: -- earlier. Ms. Derrick, is _

there something that you don't understand
about my instruction to let me finish the
question before you start your answer?

MS. DERRICK: No.

JUDGE: ©Okay. Ms. Moody, are you
going to say anything different than what
you said at your earlier public hearing
appearance?

Mg. MOQDY : Yes.

JUDGE: Okay. Mr. Bock, same question.

MR. BOCK: Yes, sir.

JUDGE: Mr. Spahr?

MR. SPAHR: Yes, sir.

JUDGE: And Mr. Berringer?

MR. BERRINGER: Yes, sir.

JUDGE: Ms. Derrick, how long would
your comments take?

MS. DERRICK: About 30 seconds.

JUDGE: And Ms. Moody?

ASSOCIATED COURT REPORTERS (561) 655-2300
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MS. MOODY: Approximately 10 minutes.

JUDGE: And Mr. Bock?

MR. BOCK: Probably 10 to 15 minutes,
sir.

- JUDGE: And Mr. Spahr? -

MR. SPAHR: Ten minutes or less.

JUDGE: Mr. Berringer?

MR. BERRINGER: Approximately 10 minutes,
sir.

JUDGE: Anything further from either of
the parties?

MR. DEE: Yes, sir.

JUDGE: Go ahead. }

MR. DEE: As you've heard, all of these
witnesses testified before. Two of the
witnesses were Petitioners before. They
now all claim that they're going to say new
things. It is those -- those new things
are precisely what I'm concerned about.

They are new issues, presumably, that
we have not previously had any notice of
or any opportunity for discovery and, thus,
no means to address or prepare for. That
is why we continue to object to public

testimony by these witnesses.
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JUDGE: Mr. Goorland, do you have
anything to add on behalf of the Department?

MR. GOORLAND: No, sir, we don't object
to public testimony.

— JUDGE: Okay. Subject to a condition
tﬁat I'm going to express in just a few

minutes, the request to allow public comment
is granted. The Motion in Limine is denied.

I'm going to start with Ms. Derrick,
proceed to Ms. Moody, Mr. Bock, Mr. Spahr
and Mr. Berringer. And to the extent that
the public comments are redundant, then
I'm going to stop it as cumulative.

So if -— if you're not going to say
anything different than what the previous
speaker said, then your public comment
would be limited to adopting that speaker's»
comments,

And any comments that you do make
will be limited to comments that are
different and not cumulative of the
previcus speakers.

Ms. Derrick.

MS. DERRICK: I just wanted to make

a comment on this inadequate notice of
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or publication about notice of the May

meeting =--

MR. DEE: Your Honor --

JUDGE: Just a minute. Mr.

Dee?

MR. DEE: We're starting public testimony

now?

JUDGE : Yes.

MR. DEE: All right, could I pose a

standing objection to any testimony that's

based -- since they're not going to be --

JUDGE: This isn't testimony.

MR. DEE: This is just public comment.

JUDGE: None of these people are under

oath.

MR. DEE: All right, sir.

I understand.

JUDGE: Go ahead, Ms. Derrick.

MS. DERRICK: Okay, concerning inadequate

notice about the May meeting that caused a

nurnber of residents actually to leave. I

talked the next day to a County Commissioner's

office, I forgot whether it was Truman

Scarborough or Sue Carlson, and they said

they had no idea that meeting was taking place.

I just wanted to put that out.

JUDGE: 0Okay, thank you.
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MS. MOODY: I just have a couple of

things to say, sir.

JUDGE: State your name for the record.

MS. MOODY: My name is Jan Moody,

MO ODY. ;I live at 2130 Winston Drive

in Cocca.

And I have been a resident there for

21 years and we have two children and we

moved here specifically for the rural

area and the wildlife out there.

Throughout the years, my children and

I and my husband have loved the wildlife.

And in fact, I dug through some photographs,

this is my son and what you see here are

white ibises, this is on our street,

And I copied out a map, and in this

yellow area is the plant, the power plant,

and the two other areas is the big fishing

hole, people have been going there for years.

And all along these red lines are

where we have spotted the endangered wood

stork. This photograph right here was taken

just about one mile from the area.

And in

this photograph, which is a photograph I

took, is a photograph of the endangered
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species, the wood stork. There's eight of
them in here and there's little babies that
are in here and the babies are what is in
danger, especially.

I have a -collection of other -- here
are some baby fledglings. These are all
wood storks all along this area.

I found out on the web site that
Oleander Plant has stated that they have
taken -- they had locked at endangered
species in this area and they found none,
there was no habitat. I beg to differ with
that because I know that's not true. There
is a lot of endangered, threatened and
special concern birds and animals like
the alligator, turtle in these lakes,
there's wood storks all along in there.
This is where they nest, this is where
they have their babies.

And in the last 20 years there has
only been 15 years where they've had babies.
I don't think a substantial type of study
has ever been done on this property, any
type of an environmental impact statement

or a study has been done.
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I know that if it had, they would
have found all these birds, the hawk, the
eagle, all of them are on this property.
They're in our property. And they'll be
flying over the five stacks that they
have and that -- because the wood séork
is, flows with the up drafts and especially
heated ones, they would get into this and
possibly -- probably be incinerated with
the 1,100 degrees.

I would ask that some type of a
environmental -- a good, unbiased environmental
study, impact study be done. Because I do
know that we have all these in our area.
And these are endangered and threatened
species, especially the wood stork, the
woodpecker and the sandhill crane, those

are three species that are on the endangered

list.

And I specifically point out these
because -- with the wood storks years ago
in the -- this soupds kind of silly now, but

in the fifth grade, this is my son's report,
this was on the wood stork and he got an

award for it. And we have been following
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these wood storks all along throughout the
years and we were very surprised because
this is the first time that they left the
cork screw sanctuary near Fort Meyers and
they headed up-and they happen to live in
our area.

And as I said before, all these red
areas are where we have spotted them. And
I know there's more in there. But they fly
over this area, too. But they're on this
property, toc. We have fcllowed these
wood storks for years and I would hate to
see éomething happen to a lot of our species.
They're beautiful.

This is what happens. And this is the
area they're coming to to build in and this
is the reason we moved out there. We're
teaching our children to, please to take
care of the wildlife and we've done that
all throughout their lives. We moved out
there specifically for this reason.

I did not get any type of a brochure
or anything of a mailing about this Oleander
Plant. I had no idea it was even going to

be in ~- that it was even going to be around
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the area until I saw it in the newspaper.

This is the reason why we moved out

here. We've invested a lot of, we've invested

a lot of money. We've put in thousands of

dollars of plants and plant life.- We've—

protected the wildlife. We've done all this

for 21 years. We've kept our eye on the
zoning. And we knew that everything was
residential, agricultural or industrial.

And with industrial, I'll say light
industrial because never in 100 years
could you ever convince me that a huge
850 megawatt plant, power plant that has
a Title V permit to spew out four million
pounds of pollutants a year is light
industry. We don't understand how that
could ever be classified as such.

And I thank you very much.

JUDGE: Okay, thank you. Mr. Bock?

MR. BOCK: Yes, sir, is this chair
being used?

JUDGE: No, you can sit there.

MR. BOCK: Your Honor, my name 1is
Craig Bock. My interest in this, I live

on the 3.2 kilometer fallout area with my
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home being on Lake Poinsett, and I know
we need to make this pertinent --

JUDGE: Just a minute, let me interrupt
you. By statute, Mr. Dee, Mr. Goorland, Mr.
Rowe, do any of.you wish to cross examine
the previous person?

MR. ROWE: No, Your Honor.

JUDGE: Do you have a copy of the
Statute handy, Mr. Dee?

MR. DEE: Yes, sir, I do, that's what
I was looking af.

JUDGE: Okay, Mr. Goorland, d¢ you?

MR. GOORLAND: No.

JUDGE: Mr. Dee, do you?

MR. ROWE: Is all that the Statute?

MR. DEE: No, sir, we'll address those
issues during our case in chief.

JUDGE: I still would like to address
that during your case in chief.

MR. DEE: Yes, sir.

JUDGE: Mr. Bock, you can proceed.

MR. BOCK: Yes, sir, my name is éraig
Bock and the reason for my interest is I
live on a 3.2 kilometer fallout area, the

actual study area of the fallout from this
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plant. The maximum particulate in an
isograph or whatever it's called, sir, I'm
no professional, certainly, there's an X

on my street showing the maximum particulate.

- _ My daughter has asthma. Through study, —

we see no other state that we can find on
the Internet that would allcocw a power plant
and light industrial, let alcne one of this
size, through. Through our research, we
have found cut that the initial 2,000 hours,
and our belief was it was going to take this
power plant over the 100 tons of VOCs which
should have provided on-site monitoring.

It was taken down to 100,000 after that.

A letter from DEP states that at any
time they could request more hours of oil
burning.

Here we are with what we feel is
already an unfair, you know, amount of
pollution from power plants in our area
because we have two already in our area
that the County Commission is working on
trying to change to gas power plants and
here we're going to allow another one

that has a tremendous amount of potential
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il burning.

This is my problem. I live on a
dream lake with a daughter with asthma.
I work for Florida Power and Light, but
I'm not representiqg-themT I'm only
representing my own interest. I'm a
distribution designer. And throughout
this ordeal I was representing Florida
Power and Light erroneously by their
attorney. It has been a difficult thing.

They got plenty of budget to work this

through.

We requested pre site monitoring.

I know that a letter from DEP stated that
for good corporate citizenship they would
put a monitor in our area. They refused
to do that, though they stated they're
good corporate citizens.

The truck traffic would be tremendous
and we have two retirement communities
right at that corner. And I believe it's
700 and something trucks to refill the,

I believe it's 5.6 million gallons, either
5.6 or 5.2, I think there are two 2.6

million gallons of oil.
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Through our research, we have found
out, it grows a mildew, I believe this
would be professiocnal hearsay since I'm

not a professional, we heard it would be

more reasonable to burn it than to treat -

it for this fungicide, quite an expensive
process. So we have a great concern, also,
you know, when this project was introduced
they said it would not be seen. They showed
pictures where you could barely see it.

Then they said in their stipulated
agreement with Brevard County, which the
attorneys in that situations said they
couldn't do that. during the moratorium
but it was voted on by the Commissioners,
stated that upon maturity 50 percent of
this plant would not be seen. A lot more
from what they had said.

Then in the stipulated agreement,
now it's 80 percent within five years.
So we did get some concession on that.

But let me say in their fact book,
they said they based their professional
reputations on -- and believe me, this

group has hired some very good professionals,

ASSOCIATED COURT REPORTERS (561) 655-2300

38




10

11

12

13-

14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24

25

I admire all of them for their knowledge,
they're very good, but they stated there
woutld be no opacity, you would not even

be able to see this. Now, all of a

_ sudden, in the agreement upon start-up

it would be 20 percent and upon running
can be 10 percent.

They also gave setbacks in the fact
book of anywhere between 250 and 750 feet,
I believe, sir, I'm going by memory. And
with the agreement, it was 25 feet to the
north, the lot line, and much closer on
the sides. So we know that we were told
erroneous facts from the beginning.

Also, this is being built upon a
piece of property that is considered
functional wetlands on it, but Brevard
County code and industry should not be
able to develop on this property.

Basically, the citizens have gotten
together, we did our best to collect
moneys, we had Mr. John Harris from
Titusville represent us to the best of
his ability. I apologize for dropping

out of the, of the challenge, but let
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me say this, Judge, I'm generally not
a coward.

But I became afraid when Mr. Dee
sent me some paperwork, and he can shake
his head but I did congratulate him and
the County Attorney's Office for scaring
me out because it talked about getting
a hard drive from your home. And that
may be very standard language, but when
you're told that it goes from just the
day of being able to speak before a judge
to a three-day court case and then you're
told they may even come get the hard drive
of your home and they're already stating
the records of a major company who I know
is not going to come to my aid, so it's
going to be my home, my money, my attorney
and my life, I did it because I was a coward
in that situation, I dropped out. I don't
say that very proudly.

There have been facts throughout, sir,
that have been not been true. There has
been considerable contributions as Mr.
Wolfinger says, they're good corporate

citizens and that's how they act upon that.
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But certainly, nothing that the average
citizen can, can come against.

As you see today, most of the seats
are filled with many of their specialists.
And who are we? - —

I do know that Doug Spahr has written
a letter to DEP. I believe it still has
gone unanswered as of the, Mr. Holliday's,
the meteorclogist's, model. As you know,
with models, sir, it depends on the
information you put in. But because these

stacks are so short, because there's a

60-foot limit on this light industrial area

for zoning, this plant is actually larger
megawatt wise than the Florida Power Plant
on U.S.-1, which is on .a small 37 acres.

But the height is 60 feet on these
stacks and I believe it's 100 (sic) and
either 12 degrees or 1,116 degrees Fahrenheilt
that this gas has to try and exit out to try
and get the rise because the stacks are so
short.

And we also believe that at times with
much humidity and like yesterday, you can

see the smoke push down quickly. Also, it's
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at a velocity at around 72 miles an hour, I
believe. They have to do this. And it
uses two million gallons of water a day.
We're concerned, we went to the City of
Cocoa, they came with their attorneygand
their representation, we were mirrored and
well challenged on each end. But two
million gallons of water a day is not minor
thing.

The citizens of Cocoa right now do not
have all reclaimed water and they plan on

using -- I believe Cocoa has in excess of

about 350,000 gallons per day, and as per

the DEP letter, they can use up to 1.9
million. They can use 8.6 in Oleander --
I believe, that and more. 1It's probably
within 100 yards to the ramp of I-95 to
the truck traffic they're going to have.

And, sir, I don't know if I've done
a well job of representing this, but I
feel if we had representation we could
afford, what they have, this certainly
could be stopped.

The functicnal wetlands, through the

meteorologist, I'm not a professional to
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‘challenge but we'wve had some, you know,
professional people, no PE engineers, look
at it and it don't seem to add up. The
letters we have from DEP that Marlene
Waters is bringing, I believe, and she's-
;unﬁing a little late, but she has copies
of those letters for to you substantiate
those facts. Their fact book, no doubt,
even a Commissioner stated, they were less,
they seemed to be less than truthful at
the time. I believe that was County
Commissioner Truman Scarborough's words

at the time, maybe to a lesser degree.

‘This power's going to go outside
rBrg—rvard, we don't need it. Today we're
looking at just the perimeter. They put
it in what we consider to be an economically
depressed area already. Certainly, we have
tourists turn off 1-95 that go past another
power plant, I believe.

This has serious ramifications. I
know my home will be going up for sale. Some
studies have shown s